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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT f
| FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA = -
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, CR N? Q C R Q 0 ‘! 3 1 t/"j(j
Plaintiff, INFORMATIGON
v. [18 U.S.C. § 1343: Wire Fraud; 18
. U.S.C. & 1028A(a) (1): Aggravated
PHILIP RIGHTER, Identity Theft; 26 U.S.C.
§ 7206(1l): Subscribing to a False
Defendant. ‘ Tax Return] :

The United States Attorney charges:
COUNT ONE
[18 U.S.C. § 1343]

A. THE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD

1. = Beginning before 2016 and continuing until at least June
2018, in Los Angeles County,iwithin the Central District of
California, and elsewhere, defendant PHILIP RIGHTER, knowingly and
with the intent to defraud, devised, participated in, executed, and
attempted to execute a scheme to defraud as to material matters, and
to obtain money and pﬁoperty‘by means of material false and
fraudulent pfetenses, representations, promises, and the concealment

of material faéts.
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B. THE MANNER AND MEANS OF THE SCHEME TO.DEFRAUD
| 2. The scheme to defraud operated, 'in substance, in the
following manner:

a. Defendan£ RIGHTER sold, or attempted to sell;
frauduleﬁt art, or used frauduientvart as collateral to obtéin, or
éttempt to obtain, loans on which he then defaulted; Defendant
RIGHTER’ s scheme involved artwork that he claimed-and represeﬁted
were genuine pileces Created.by Jean-Michel Basquiat, Keith Haring,
Réy Lichtenstein, Kurt-Schwitteré, Andy Warhol, and others when, in
fact,'the artwork was not creéted by these artists and instead was
fraudulent and ﬁad little or no valﬁe;A | | |

b. Before August 15, 20i6, defendant'RIGHTER generally"
conducted these fraudulent transactions in his own name}' On that
date, however, an égent from the FedéraliBureau of Investigation and
a detective'from the Los Angeles Police Department interviewed
defendanf'RfGHTER about fraudulent Keith Haring art that he had
attempted to sell to a Miami gallery and warned defendant RIGHTER
about selling fraudulent art. After that interview; defeﬁdant
RIGHTER continued to engage in the same type‘bf fraudulent
transactions, but generally in the names of other people.

C. Shortiy before that interview, in Juiy 2016, defendant
RIGHTER had ordered stamps which appeared as if they wefe‘éuthentic
stamps of “The AutheﬂticationiCommittee of the‘Estate of Jean-Michel
Basquiat” and 5Thé Estate'of Keitﬁ Haring, Seal Qf'Authentiéity.”
| d." Td make his fake artwork appear authentié, defendant
RIGHTER used these staﬁps on ?rovenance documents that he créated.
As to the fake Basquiat artwork, defendant RIGHTER also created
fraudulent gallery labels falsely identifying pieces as having been

2
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purchased from the Annina Noseil Gallery (a legitimate gallery for
Basquiat artf.

e. Through these fraudulent provenance documents that
defendant RIGHTER created and knew weré fraudulent, defendant RIGHTER
caused victims to believe that the artwork was legitimate in order to
(1) sell the fake artwork to victims; and (2) use the artwork as
collateral to obtain loans that defendant RIGHTER would not.pay béck.

f. In total, defendant RIGHTER'S fraudulent scheme caused
an actual les of at least $758,265, and had an intended loss of at
least $5,656,500.

C. USE OF THE WIRES

3. On or about August 2, 2017, defendant RIGHTER, in the name

of K.B., within the Central District of California, and elsewhere,

for the purpose of executing the above-described scheme to defraud,

caused the transmission by means of wire communication in interstate
and foreign commerce of a payment for apprdximately $37,970 from the
art sale website, A.B., when defendanthIGHTER sold what he claimed
was a 1983 piece of art by Basquiat with the word “Samo” on the |
artwork, when, in fact, defendant RIGHTER knew the piece was fake,

had not been created by Basquiat, and had little or no value.
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COUNT TWO
[18 U.S.C. § 1028A(a) (1)]

On or about August 2, 2017, in Los Angeles County, within the
Central District of California, and elsewhere, defendant PHILIP
RIGHTER knowingly possessed and used, without lawful authority, means
of identification that deféndant RIGHTER knew belonged to another
person, namely, the name and signature of Gerard Basquiat, the
previous Administrator of the Estate of Jean-Michel Basquiat, on
fraudulent provenance documents for artwork purportedly created by
Jean-Michel Basquiét, during and in relation to the foense of Wire
Fraud, a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1343, as charged in Count One of this Information.
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COUNT THREE
[26 U.S.C. § 7206(1)]

‘On or about Februéry 26, 2016, in Los Angeles County, within the
Central District of California, and elsewhere, defendant PHILIP
RIGHTER willfully made and subscribed to a materially false Amended
United States Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for the tax year 2015,
whichvwas verified by written declaration that it was made under the
penalty of perjury, which was filed with the Internal Revenue
Service, and which defendant RIGHTER did not believe to be true and
correct as to every material matter; specifically, on such Form
1040X, defendant RIGHTER claimed a false casualty and theft loss of
/17
/77




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
24

25

26

27

28

Case 2:20-cr-00131-PSG Document 1 Filed 03/10/20 Page 6 of 6 Page ID #:6

$2,575,000 related to artwork that he claimed had been stolen, when

in fact, as defendant RIGHTER then knew, the artwork was fraudulent

and had little or no value, and he was not entitled to claim that

loss.
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Chief, Criminal Division
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Assistant United States Attorney
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Assistant United States Attorney
Deputy Chief, Environmental and
Community Safety Crimes Section
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Assistant United States Attorney
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Crimes Section \




